CITY OF STATHAM

AGENDA

Statham City Hall

327 Jefferson Street, Statham, GA 30666

WORK SESSION — February 3, 2022 6:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

Roll Call

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

REPORTS

1. Finance Department
2. Police Department
3. Public Works Department

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1.

0-22-01 Ordinance Amending Zoning Hearing and Application Procedures:
First Reading. An ordinance amending the Unified Development Code of the City of Statham,
Georgia, Adopted June 30, 2020, amended April 20, 2021, to amend Article 13, “Zoning
Amendments and Procedures,” to add sections 13-215 and 13-315 “Amendments to
Applications,” and to amend section 13-405, “Sequence and Limits”; and to amend Article 14,
“Variances and Appeals” to add Section 14-117; to repeal conflicting ordinances; to provide
for severability; to provide for an effective date; and for other purposes.

0-22-02 Ordinance Adopting and Enacting a New Code for the City of Statham:
First Reading: An ordinance adopting and enacting a new code for the City of Statham,
Georgia; Providing for the repeal of certain ordinances not included therein; providing a
penalty for the violation thereof; providing for the manner of amending such code; and
providing when such code and this ordinance shall be effective.

PP-21-04 Preliminary Plat Statham Place: Application for Preliminary Plat Approval for
“Statham Place,” Sullins Engineering, LLC, Applicant, MHC of Georgia, LLC, property
owner, 36 lots on 48.10 acres fronting on the southeast side of Dooley Town Road (part of
Map/Parcels ST04/095C and ST04/095). Applicant requests waiver for the installation of sidewalk
along the frontage of the project on Dooley Town Road per Section 6-402 of the Statham Unified
Development Code. Staff’s recommendation is approval with conditions.

3. PP-22-01 Preliminary Plat Providence Estates II: Application for Preliminary Plat Approval

for “Providence Estates 2.0,” GDCI GA 7, LP, applicant and owner, for 35 lots on xx acres
units fronting on the north side of Providence Road (part of Map/Parcel ST05/131) (UR, Urban
Residential Zoning); (Bear Creek Water Supply Watershed). Applicant requests waiver for the
installation of sidewalk along the frontage of the project on Providence Road per Section 6-

Page 1 of 2



402 of the Statham Unified Development Code. Staff’s recommendation is approval with
conditions.

Agreement for Reserved Sewer Capacity: To sign an agreement for reserved sewer capacity
with Owner and Developer, Richard Cooper of GDCI GA 7, LP for 35 ERUs or 8,750 gallons
per day. The total cost to the Developer to reserve 35 ERU’s is $157,500 which will be paid
directly to the City. Upon receipt of full payment and execution of agreement, the City will
purchase 35 ERUs from the Barrow County Water & Sewer Authority, which will be reserved
for this development.

RFP 21-005 Gravity Sewer Line Replacement Projeet: To approve a gravity sewer line
replacement project between 1st Street and 2nd Street adjacent to the Casto Hardware Store that was
budgeted for FY22. Replacement of 500 LF of sewer line is needed to correct issues with sags and
damage to the existing line, Bids were advertised in the City’s legal organ for three cycles; sealed bids
were read and received on January 27, 2022: Anderson Grading & Pipeline for $189,000 and
MeDaniel Utilities, Inc. for $175,220. Staff’s recommendation is to select McDaniel Utilities, Inc. for
$175,220 with a 15% contingency for a total project cost of $201,503.

Impact Fees: To discuss the City implementing and utilizing impact fees. Impact fees, which
are one-time fees charged to land developers to help defray the costs of expanding capital
facilities to serve new growth, can be a substantial source of revenue for financing capital
improvements. Impact fee funds are utilized for specific improvement categories.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

1.

Meeting to discuss or deliberate upon the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring,
disciplinary action or dismissal, or periodic evaluation or rating of a public officer or employee
as provided in Georgia Code section 50-14-3(b)(2).

Pursuant to the attorney-client privilege and as provided by Georgia Code section 50-14-2(1),
a meeting otherwise required to be open was closed to the public in order to consult and meet
with legal counsel pertaining to pending or potential litigation, settlement, claims,
administrative proceedings, or other judicial actions brought or to be brought by or against the
agency or any officer or employee or in which the agency or any officer or employee may be
directly involved and the matter discussed was pending or potential litigation.

CITIZEN INPUT

MINUTE APPROVAL

I. January 18,2022 Regular Meeting

ADJOURN

Page 2 of 2



0-22-01

CITY OF STATHAM
STATE OF GEORGIA

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY
OF STATHAM, GEORGIA, ADOPTED JUNE 30, 2020, AMENDED APRIL 20, 2021, TO
AMEND ARTICLE 13, “ZONING AMENDMENTS AND PROCEDURES,” TO ADD
SECTIONS 13-215 AND 13-315 “AMENDMENTS TO APPLICATIONS,” AND TO
AMEND SECTION 13-405, “SEQUENCE AND LIMITS”; AND TO AMEND ARTICLE
14, “VARIANCES AND APPEALS” TO ADD SECTION 14-117; TO REPEAL
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSLES.

WHEREAS, The Statham Unified Development Code outlines the processes and procedures for
the City’s consideration of applications for rezoning, conditional use, and variance applications
submitted by property owners or their agents; and

WHEREAS, The City of Statham desires to provide for procedures that will allow both proponents
and opponents of said applications to provide input on each proposal in an effective, efficient and

orderly manner; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the text the Unified Development Code to provide
for clarification as to the procedures by which public hearings on applications are conducted; and

WHEREAS, The City of Statham further desires to amend the text of the Unified Development
Code to restrict any applicant’s ability to file an amendment to a pending rezoning, conditional use
or variance application after the conduct of the public hearing; and

WHEREAS, Notice of Public Hearing for this amendment was published in a newspaper of general
circulation within the City of Statham as required by the zoning procedures law and the Statham
unified development code for text amendments; and

WHEREAS, The City Council conducted a public hearing on this matter;

Now, therefore, [T IS ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Statham that the Statham
Unified Development Code, adopted June 30, 2020, is hereby amended in the following respects:

Section 1.

Atticle 13, “Zoning Amendments and Procedures” is hereby amended to add the following
Sections 13-215 and 13-315, both entitled “Amendments to Application”

“Section 13-215. Amendments to Application.



(a) Amendments generally. An applicant may amend their application at any time prior
to the conveying of a public hearing by filing an amended application with the zoning
administrator that meets all the requirements of Section 13-203 of this UDC.

(b) Amendments after public hearing. After five calendar days following the Statham
City Council’s public hearing on an application, no amendment to the application,
proposed site plan, or other document may be submitted, and the City Council shall not
consider any proposed amendments or changes to the proposed use or site plan made
after the five calendar days following the conclusion of the public hearing. This
limitation shall not apply where the public hearing is tabled at the public hearing.

Section 13-315. Amendments to Application.

(a) Amendments generally. An applicant may amend their application at any time prior
to the conveying of a public hearing by filing an amended application with the zoning
administrator that meets all the requirements of Section 13-303 of this UDC.

(b) Amendments after public hearing. After five calendar days following the Statham
City Council’s public hearing on an application, no amendment to the application,
proposed site plan, or other document may be submitted, and the City Council shall not
consider any proposed amendments or changes to the proposed use or site plan made
after the five calendar days following the conclusion of the public hearing. This
limitation shall not apply where the public hearing is tabled at the public hearing.”

Section 2.

The existing Article 13, Section 14-405 is deleted in its entirety with the following
substituted in its place:

“Section 13-405, Sequence and limits.

For all public hearings held pursuant to this Article 13, the following sequence and time
limits shall apply.

(a) Staff presentation. The City’s zoning administrator, planner or designee shall speak
first and shall present to the City Council their report and recommendation, including
any proposed conditions of approval. At the conclusion of the staff’s presentation, the
City Council may ask any questions of the staff that it has of the staff regarding the
application or the staff’s report. There shall be no limit on the time upon staff’s
presentation.

(b) Applicant and proponents. After the presentation of the staff’s report and
recommendation, the applicant or their representative shall be provided uwp to 10
minutes to present the application. No representative of the applicant shall be allowed
to speak on behalf of the applicant unless the representative has full authority to make
binding commitments to the City with respect to any stipulations that may be offered



in connection with such application. Failure to attend the hearing by the applicant or
his or her authorized representative may result in the application being continued or
denied. An applicant may reserve any or all of their allotted time for rebuttal if they so
choose and must clearly state said reservation prior to concluding their remarks to the
City Council. If, at the conclusion of the applicant’s presentation, there are any
proponents wishing to speak in favor of the application, they may do so. Any time used
by said proponents shall be deducted from the balance of applicant’s remaining 10
minutes,

(c) Opponents. After the presentation of the applicant and proponents, any person

wishing to speak in opposition of the application shall be allowed to speak. The chair,
in his or her discretion, may require each person wishing to speak to sign in with the
Clerk of Court prior to the beginning of the public hearing. A total of up to 10 minutes
shall be provided for all those wishing to speak in opposition. Upon the conclusion of
the opponent’s presentation, those present, but who have questions will speak during
the remaining time afforded the opposition.

() Rebuttal. After the presentation of the opponent(s), if the applicant has any time

remaining, which has been expressly reserved for rebuttal, the applicant will then be
allowed to use the reserved time for rebuttal but must be limited to points or issues
raised by opponents to the application during the public hearing,

{(e) Authority to Expand Time Limits. The presiding official, in his or her discretion,

M

may alter the time limits set forth herein, but in no event shall the presiding official
afford one side more time than the other to present their position. Each side shall be
afforded the same amount of time.

Decorum and presentations, generally. Each speaker may speak only to the proposed
application(s) under consideration and shall address his or her remarks only to the
hearing body. Each speaker shall refrain from personal attacks on any other speaker or
the discussion of facts or opinions irrelevant to the proposed application under
consideration, The presiding official may limit or refuse a speak the right to continue
if, after first being cautioned, the speaker continues to violate this procedure.

{g) Questions and Answers of City Council. During the public hearing, any member of

the City Council as appropriate may, upon recognition by the presiding official, ask
questions of the staff, applicant, or speaker at the public hearing. Time devoted to
question and answers will not be counted against any time limitations that have been
imposed on presentations.

(h) Requests to Table, If at any time the applicant wishes to continue the public hearing

to allow for such discussions with members of the public, the applicant may request
that the City Council table the public hearing. The City Council may, in its complete,
unfettered discretion grant or deny said requests or may condition such tabling on
applicant’s payment of any costs incurred by the City resulting from said delay,



including, without limitation, advertising expenses, expert fees, ete.. Once the public
hearing is concluded, no additional public hearings may be held.”

Section 3.

Article 14, “Variances And Appeals” is hereby amended to add the following Section 14-
117 entitled “Amendments to Application.”

“Section 14-117. Amendments to Application.

{a) Amendments generally. An applicant may amend their application at any time prior
to the conveying of a public hearing by filing an amended application with the zoning
administrator that meets all the requirements of Section 14-103 of this UDC.

(b) Amendments after public hearing. After five calendar days following the Statham
City Council’s public hearing on an application, no amendment to the application,
proposed site plan, or other document may be submitted, and the City Council shall not
consider any proposed amendments or changes to the proposed use or site plan made
after the five calendar days following the conclusion of the public hearing. This
limitation shall not apply where the public hearing is tabled at the public hearing,”

Section 4.
All ordinances, or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Section 5.
If any portion of this ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not affect or impair the remaining portions unless it clearly appears that
such other parts are wholly and necessarily dependent upon the part held to be invalid or
unconstitutional.

Section 6.

The effective date of this ordinance shall be upon its adoption by the Statham City Council.



SO ORDAINED, this day of

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

City Attorney

, 2022,



0-22-02

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE FOR THE

CITY OF STATHAM, GEORGIA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF

CERTAIN ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED THEREIN; PROVIDING A

PENALTY FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE

MANNER OF AMENDING SUCH CODE; AND PROVIDING WHEN

SUCH CODE AND THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

Section 1. The Code entitled "The Code of the City of Statham, Georgia," published by
Municipal Code Corporation, consisting of Chapters 1 through 32, each inclusive, is adopted.

Section 2. All ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before April
20, 2021, and not included in the Code or recognized and continued in force by reference therein,
are repealed.

Section 3. The repeal provided for in Section 2 hereof shall not be construed to revive any
ordinance or part thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent ordinance that is repealed by this
ordinance.

Section 4. Unless another penalty is expressly provided, every person convicted of a
violation of any provision of the Code or any ordinance, rule or regulation adopted or issued in
pursuance thereof shall be punished by a fine in the maximum amount as allowed by state law.
Each act of violation and each day upon which any such violation shall continue or occur shall
constitute a separate offense. The penalty provided by this section, unless another penalty is
expressly provided, shall apply to the amendment of any Code section, whether or not such penalty
is reenacted in the amendatory ordinance. In addition to the penalty prescribed above, the City may

pursue other remedies such as abatement of nuisances, injunctive relief and revocation of licenses

or permits.



0-22-02

Section 5. Additions or amendments to the Code when passed in such form as to indicate
the intention of the City Council to make the same a part of the Code shall be deemed to be
incorporated in the Code, so that reference to the Code includes the additions and amendments.

Section 6. Ordinances adopted after April 20, 2021, that amend or refer to ordinances that

have been codified in the Code shall be construed as if they amend or refer to like provisions of

the Code.
Section 7. This ordinance shall become effective
Passed and adopted by the this day of
Mayor
ATTEST:
City Clerk

Certificate of Adoption

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the ordinance passed at the regular

meeting of the City Council, held on the day of ,

City Clerk



PP-aa -0l

)a IEAGYENTRVA 10 }DJ
W DEC 2 7 200

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
City of Statham

327 Statham Street Phone: 770-725-5455
Statham, GA 30066 :

APPLICATION FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT

/ '/ }]) [7¢ AS} :’
Applicant Information; i e HE CK*

f Jl[ 5
Name: GDCIGA7,LP DIt
*/ooo

Address: 5755 Dupree Drive Suite 130 /2. 4

City, State, Zip: _Atlanta GA, 30327 {;efw
~1S

Phone: E-mail: _richard@pacificgroupinc.com QQ\)

roper s Information: (if different from applicant)
Name:
Address:
City, State, Zip:

Phone:

The property owner, must sign the following form; if the applicant is not the property owner, you
must submit evidence of property owner approval to file this application by submitting the property
owner authorization form.

Propert ormation:

Tax Map and Parcel Number:  ST05 131

Address (if one has been assigned):

Acreage of Property: 198~ fB ; LH Corcected

Existing Zoning District: _ UR

Proposed Use:
Residential development - Proposed 35 lots under current Zoning District UR




Pp-22-01

Property Owner Anthorization

I swear that Tam the owner of the properly which is the subject matter of this application, as
shown in the records of Barrow County, Georgia.

Name of Owner(s):: GPC.L A ) LP pY: PAcC(Fe L ApD, LLE 45
e Mﬂfiégx

1 aufhorize the person named below to act as applicant in the pursuit of this ¢ dpp]!C'lllOl]

Signature of Property Owner: W’\ ) P

Name of Applicant(s): _ (=DPCE ¢ 4 /I LpP

Address: 9755 DUP ree Dr Hle (30 Aoatlta GA 20327

Property owner personally appeared
before me

Wicheel I 7\554//,[ o\

wlio swears that the information
contained in this authorization is truc and
correct to the best of his or her knowledge
and belief;

No ary Publlc

A A ) (zﬁ /,é&{ Kf\u




‘I'o complete your application, attach/submit the following in addition to this completed form:

L

is provided below for preliminary plats of subdivisions:

Specifications for all preliminary plats:

Box. A box of not less than three inches square, if at full size, in the upper left-hand
corner

County

Cily

Owner name and contact info

Type of plat

Name of subdivision

Designations for lols (#s)

Developer name and contact info

Militia disirict

Date of plat and revision dates or block for revisions

Surveyor, Name, address, and telephone number, certificate of authorization numbey

Surveyor registration number

Surveyor seal

Page numbers (If the plat has multiple pages)

NE NN N N NN NS

Scale (graphic)

Point of beginning and point of reference

4'\\

Names of adjoining subdivisions and property owners and documents reviewed

AN

Roads. Adjacent streets, roads, or other rights-of-way, and the width and the former
widths, if pertinent, of rights-of-way adjacent to or crossing the property

Water. All water boundaries

Easements. The width and the former widths, if pertinent, of casements adjacent to
or within the property

Encroachments and cemeteries. Apparent encroachments and observed evidence of
any cemeferies or burial grounds

Notth arrow

Metes and bounds bearings and distances and areas of boundary and lots

Iquipment reference

Closure precision statement

Monuments: must be set at all boundaries. All monuments found set, or replaced

Monument specifications

Street names

MA

Location sketch or vicinity map

Road centetlines, pavement widths and radii

Lot and block identifiers

Application fee: $500.00 or $30.00 per lot, whichever is greater, Make check payable
/ {o the Cily of Statham. Fre50 cr A 045

Plat: Submit 10 copies of the preliminary plat plus one digital copy. Checklist of items




Addresses for cach lol (il applicablic)

|
A

Front building setbacks

Flood hazard area note

Privale covenants, Statement and reference, i any

Point of beginning and point of reference

Surveyor cextification box, as follows:

“As required by subsection (d) of O,C.G.A. Scction 15-6-67, this plat has been
prepared by a land surveyor and approved by all applicable focal jurisdictions for
recording as evidenced by approval cerlificates, signatures, stamps, or statements
hercon, Such approvals or affirmations should be confirmed with the appropriate
governmental bodies by any purchaser or user of this plat as to intended usc of
any parcel, Furthcrimore, the undersigned land surveyor certifies that this plat
complics with the minimum technical standards for property surveys in Georgia
as sel forth in the rules and regulations of the Georgia Board of Registration for

Professional Engincers and Land Surveyors and as set forth in 0.C.G.A. Section
15-6-67.”

The land surveyor shall sign on a line immediately beneath the certificalion

Owner’s cerdificntion:

“The owner of the land shown on this plat and whose name is subscribed hereto,
certifies that that he/she is the fee simple absolute owner of the land shown on

this plat and thal all state, city and county taxes or other assessments now due on
this land have been paid.”

x{(ﬂww —
W‘Cf,..ﬁffﬁ“} RXSAAIITYY
. . eyt
Ownet o ?”:"\61{" W i,
Signed, sealcd and ;;'? !‘_ ‘ ‘\r\"‘:-"
dclivured in thc presence Pl v
&('f'df *‘ﬂ}’&- T
(/ beg ,, A :,r
M/{W O{'\ A }A— /QUM\ ‘,(\ "?OQJ
Notry Public «/ N

/[, ﬂu&, /f'\'

L (‘n nm (' ‘ h'v
CERTIFICATE OF PRELIMINARY PLAT API’I&G)‘VA{L

All applicable requirements of the City of Statham relative to final plats having been

fulfilled, approval of this is hereby granted by the Zoning Administrator and is
entitled to be recorded.

Zoning Adminisirator

Date:




Health department certificate. If the subdivision involves an on-sife sewage
management system or communily water system, the following certification
shall be provided on the plat:
“This final plat has been approved by the Barrow County Health
Department as being consistent with applicable state and local
environinental health requirements,”

Signature, Director, Barrow County Health Department  Date

Note: For a minor subdivision, the Zoning Adminisirator may waive the reqitivement (o
include a signed health department ceriificate on a final plai; provided, however, that if the
loi(s) included in the final plat of a minor subdivision are to be served by an on-site sewage
management system (seplic tank), in lieu of said certification the final plat shall contain the
Jollowing nofe;

“Hach lot must be reviewed and approved by the Barrow County Bnvironmental Health
Department for on-site sewage management system placement prior to the issnance of a
building permit.”




Tabteabt (,
Adreed Tave aont Patwbirtt Whith

| . DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY
Tk By R || BOBBY JOE HOLLIDAY | - R —— g
Sl | Pt ot | et | (D 360 PG +5) ! o : £ BeseE oo =
Drofewe 1 0® ﬁ B : j (PB 50 PG 165 ,_ N P . ATANTA GA 20337 E
PARCEL 1D: 5T04 649 v . CHGNER
LT b o Dt W Tttt 28 . Y ETH Ui kil
B A ~ ZONING =SR2 4 o me_wwﬁwmmm_%qzz MZ
e o
ﬂ/; | .,_ PIREFAG uw
e ] N ,_. g ¢
N . N \ , v TR v 3
R Raaand o I:}A 0 P i | T -, WHLaNT A, G 20327 m
¥ ; , | ,.,.\l\w\lu‘ B e GEICT 1
= - PR H JU— / P \ - T +
N ” REEK 1 Pl R0 %, ! i
e A I i Y hise'r \\ \\\.% 7 ! Fhi
LA - i [ : .
1. ) ot / ?

WK, LOT ARCA 750055
M, LD DTN, 20 FT
MAZL LG COVIRALE 50%

! £/
/ /%

" VICINITY MAP

NTS, FUHOPDZLS UNITS 35
/ ORI DM = 150 UP

MIN. HOME $12E 1,400 7 (hCATCR)

PRAPGULS RO 3T

;/ \. /.

PACIEFIC GROUP
24 HAR TVERLEAY CIANCE FARD CDIRER / 61-E0-i8)

5755 LLEFEE [SSE 1N, ATLANFA, $A 32327

N - . A ' FROBOSED RUAD WOTH. M7 ISCI0C
R ! N & \ zna:.,.n.n.acﬂz.ga.. 27T ACREE (157 H
w8 =) RN s G TR )
/ \ __ \ 0&\\.6\0. D PROVISTD GPTN SPACT ERMACALS (34N
PROVIDENCE ESTATES -UNIT ONE .\HQ\\ y o N o g
mv%zw t .mmuumw ] —~ W,QM@MA@% T LTI i 7 RRAGE RS (] P m
STORIAWATER ., 29 4 C: ey + STACET THELS T OE INETALLEG UK GITY OF Y Bt &
- i HANAGEMENT N SN Ty, ST ATRAMUBE D cons
~ / R i, Y wiBE
() O/ / o
NN 7Y % S5 of- 5
/ T4 mmo 4 Gy oo f-S42
v : \\.“\ megsasrse o 8 N /S =% 7
A R 7 L BIAAG & . G =% =
| “\\\ SR R / =1
¢ :

N

SRR

oocTaRl R L

amt
N

~ i) o e

AN pu,.n.g;nué.n\\ ~
e Wy 27 n PR
WS &~y maiw 0 ~
NN iy '
e A 4 /(\\‘ 36 s

N

N\

ALA PROVIDENCE ESTATES, LLC
(DB 1735 PG 109

\ i ~ ., s PN
. - A s

(PB 61 PG 267} ; 7 Aﬂ\ R PNV AN s I

PARCEL IL): STOSB 074 : o N

ZONING = UR

n GO, LEOSTA

¥
z
7
H
F
%
3
:
&
5
i

OFF & ST, 2h

=
w5
MU
8 ©
.Ar
mmm
5 ¢
g g
-

g

= oy 21457 e T e e
/ . . e, ) NSO S e S e e
[ 7. MES——— S R e s s e & ST
S S Ll e B B PROVIDENCE ROAD
e e W R RESGEG (60" PUBLIC RNY) I E_Lnﬂng
= : aF @ N 60 30 o 60 PR T )
= 1. L ] s 1 DRAWN WAF
= ! TN
T3 [ e
T ipch m G0 L ean0




April Stephens

From: Richard Cooper <richard@ pacificgroupinc.com>
Sent: Friday, January 28, 2022 10:02 AM

To: April Stephens

Subject: RE: Providence Estates Il

Good morning April,

As discussed, we would like to request a waiver for the installation of sidewalk along the frontage of our project on Providence
Road. Please accept this email as the Sidewalk installation Waiver (Sec. 6-402). Below is a summary for each item noted in the

Section:

Existing sidewalks

a)
b)

c)

Schools

a)
b)

To the EAST — Providence Place Subdivision does not contain sidewalks internally or along Providence Road.

To the WEST — Providence Estates Unit [ is approximately 1800 linear feet from the proposed entrance. it does contain
sidewalks, but they do not currently extend towards the proposed development.

To the SOUTH — There is existing sidewalk on the opposite side of Providence Road that terminates at April Court,
approximately 1100 linear feet from the proposed entrance. There are no traffic controlled intersections that would
allow for pedestrian crossing.

Statham Elementary School and Castial Academy are greater than one-half mile from the development
There are no parks within one-half mile

Existing conditions

a)

Approximately 600 linear feet from the proposed entrance is the first of two creek crossings. These locations have
virtually no shoulder that would allow for the installation of sidewalk. To improve these shoulders would require the
extension of the culvert pipes in the live streams, additional fill to be placed along the shoulder and in the stream
buffers, and the installation of retaining walls to accommodate the significant grade changes due to the existing
topography. This would require plan approval from USACE, Ga EPD, and the City of Statham, with no assurance of
approval from the outside agencies. Additionally, the added costs would be excessively burdensome for this size
project.

if you would prefer this in another format, let me know and l'll get it over to you.

Thanks

Richard Cooper

The Pacific Group, Inc.
(678) 603-8267
www.pacificgroupinc.com

From: April Stephens {mailto:astephens@cityofstatham.com]
Sent: Wednesday, january 26, 2022 8:52 AM

To: Richard Cooper <richard@pacificgroupinc.com>

Subject: Providence Estates il

Hi Richard,



MAYOR CiTY COUNCIL
Joe Piper Betty Lyle

Tammy Crawley
CITY CLERK

Dwight McCormic
Hattie Thrasher
Gary Venable

Sandra Bennett

PLANNING and DEVELOPMENT
City of Statham, P.O. Box 28, Statham, GA 30666 - (770) 725-5455
December 15, 2021
Richard Cooper

Pacific Group, Inc.
(678) 603-8267

RE: Zoning Confirmation, +/- 17.96 acres per tax data base map and parcel ST05 131
Property Name; GDCI GA 7, LP Providence Road, Statham, GA 30666

Dear Mr, Cooper,
The above-referenced property, as more fully described in the attached legal description and as
shown on the attached tax map, is zoned UR, Urban Residential, according to the Official Zoning

Map of the City of Statham, Georgia, as adopted June 30, 2020 by the Statham City Council,

Permitted uses are as specified in Table 2-1 and Dimensional Requirements in Table 2-2 of the
Unified Development Code of the City of Statham updated June 15, 2021.

If you need any further information, please let me know.
Sincerely,

(e Mocptcins

April Stephens
City of Statham

Attachments: Exhibit A, Legal Description, Survey and Tax Map

Statham Clty Hall
P.O. Box 28 — 327 Jefferson St
Statham, GA 30666




Exhibit A Legal Deseription

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

All that tract or porcel of lond lying ond being. in Georgia Militia District 1742, City
of Statham, Barrow County, Georgle, ond being mare. partitulorly described as' folows:

TO FIND THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, GOMMENCE ot a 1/27open top pipe found
at the intérssction of the northerly right' of way of Providence Road (66 Public .

Right— —of—-Way) ond the southwest corner of Lot 32, Providence Pluace Subdivision,
par Plat Book B), Page 116; said point belng the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

FROM THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING AS THUS ESTABLISHED,

Thénce dlong the northierly right—of—way of Providence Rocd (60" Public
Right—of—Way) the following courses and distonces:

South 10 Degrees 14 Minutes 48 Seconds East a distonce of 11,99 feet to a poinf;
Along a curve te the right, an orc distonce of 758,77 feet, sald curve having ¢
rading of 30,315.70 feet and being’ subtended by a chord of 75875 feet, at South
85 Degreas 10 Mmutea 26 Seconds Wmf to_a point;

South 85 Degress 10 Minutes 25 Seconds West o disténed of 214.57 feel to o point;
Along « curve to the right; an arc distonce of 37B.07 feet, sold cLrve hawng v}
rodius of 5,424.24 feet and being subtended by a chord of 377.99 feet, ot South
86" Degrees 21 M:‘nuteb 23 Seconds West fo a polni;

South 88 Degrees 42 Minutes 21 Seconds Wesl a distance of 159,174+ feet to o
point in the centerling of a creek;

Thence ledving sufd rsghf—of—-way and rurtning along the centeriine of said creek,
said centerling being the property ling, o distonce of 13641 fest, ard subtended by
a traverse line with the following courses and distanws

worth 21 Degrées 20 M__m_u,t_es 24 Seconds East o distonce of 113,63 feet to o point;
North 01 Degrees 25. Minutes 17 Seconds West a distarice of 236.28 féet to a pont;
North 13 Degrees 02 Minutes 21 Seconds West a distance of 193.90 fect fo o point;
North 53 Degrees 00 Minutes 30 Seconds East a distance of 54.60 feat to. o point;
Morth O Degrees 36 Minutes 32 Seconds West o distance of 137.60 .feet te a point;
North 37 Degrees 39 Minutes 37 Seconds East a distance of 149.70 feet to a point;
North 26 Degrees 35 Minutes 00 Seconds East o distance of 267.34 feet to a poink;
Thence leaving the centérline of sald creek South 53 Degrees 31 Minutes. 09 Seconds
Cast a distonce of 288.77+ feet to a 1 rebor found;

Thence South 53 Degrees 20 Minutes 46 Seconds Fust o distance of 1,283.02 féaet

to a 1/2 open top pipe found, said point being the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said traet or porcel-of lond containing 19.8004 Acres,

Statham Clty Hall
P.0. Box 28 — 327 Jefferson 5t
Statham, GA 30666



Survey of Map/Parcel ST05 131

TOTAL AREA=
19500+ ACRES

ALAFONETNC T EATAM P
A R
1103y
AAITT B2 FTSI2EN

AAFSRILOUT LTS 1T
<AITEMN 12Ty
AERFLAG BN

FRECFLOY ST N

3
d SN L
Y ]

I g )
g Yo et dig
B i STy T M T lli_’:“. - 433

FROVIDIACK KOAD
JrTTC R

oo ?
i

Statham City Halt
P.Q. Box 28 — 327 Jefferson St
Statham, GA 30666



Tax Map

T

Parcal 1D 5T03132 Cramer GOCIGATLP

ClassCode Residental 5755 DUPREEDR
Taxing District  STATHAM SUITZ 230
Acres Tes ATLANTA GAZ327

Physical Address PROVIDENCE RD
AmsessedValue  Value S50000

{Nmee; NSTIS B used o Jagal dogumenzs

Statham City Hall
P.O. Box 28 — 327 Jefferson St.

Statham, GA 30666




TO:

FROM:
DATE:

RE:

Growth Management

Jerry Weitz & Associates, Inc.
Planning & Development Consultants

Comprehensive Planning
Zoning & Land Use Regulations

1225 Rucker Road, Alpharetta, Georgia 30004 R pyeaiony

I Phone: (404) 502-7228 E-Mail: jweitz@bellsouth.net Expert Testimony

Zoning Administration

MEMORANDUM

April Plank Stephens, City of Statham
Ralph Davia, PE, Greyden Engineering

Jerry Weitz, PhD, FAICP, Principal
December 28, 2021

January 2022 City Council Agenda ltem (not a public hearing): Application
by Pacific Group, By Greyden Engineering, for Preliminary Plat Approval for
Providence Estates Unit |l: 35 units fronting on the north side of Providence Road
(part of Map/Parcel ST05/131) (UR, Urban Residential Zoning); (Bear Creek
Water Supply Watershed)

APPROVAL PROCESS AND CRITERIA

Preliminary plats require approval of the Statham City Council. The basis of the Statham City
Council's review of and action on a preliminary plat shall be whether the preliminary plat meets

the pur

poses and requirements of this article and the UDC generally, whether the public

dedications proposed in the subdivision are adequate, and whether the preliminary plat
conforms to the policies of the comprehensive plan. (ref. Sec. 15-304 UDC).

REVIEW FOR COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC)

Staff has completed a review of the subdivision and has several suggested additions and
changes as specified below:

/1.

Clarification of area of tract. The plat indicates there are 19.8 acres involved in the
subdivision. However, the tax map referenced in the proposed subdivision includes the
area west of the sanitary sewer easement and east of the stream running north-south
(1.327 acre), which is platted as open space for Lakes of Statham (159 feet of frontage
per plat). Further, the tax map, which may not have an accurate area shown in the
system, shows the tract (including the Lakes of Statham open space of 1.327 acre), is
only 17.96 acres. The 1.327 acre open space tract that is platted as part of Lakes of
Statham subdivision must be shown as open space for Lakes of Statham, and the total
acreage needs to be clarified (with reference to a boundary survey) and where
necessary corrected, especially since a minimum open space requirement is imposed.

Bear Creek Environmental Overlay. The subject property lies within the Bear Creek
water supply reservoir protection district. A note should be added on the plat referencing
these requirements (Article 1V, Sec. 4.110. The plat correctly shows 100 foot buffers and
150 foot impervious surface setbacks required by the overlay district of the UDC.



Memo, Providence Estates Unit |l Preliminary Plat

/3.

However, there is a stream that does not show up in the county mapping system as a
stream that is shown with a state minimum imposed buffer, Additional information shouid
be submitted about the classification of this stream; if perennial it is subject to the 100
foot buffer and 150 impervious surface requirement. Also, the plat should add a
reference that the overall impervious surface of the subdivision cannot exceed 25
percent of the area of the subdivision. A demonstration of compliance with the 25
percent impervious maximum is required prior to final plat approval.

UR dimensional requirements. The minimum lot size for the UR zoning district is 7,500
square feet but that minimum can be reduced to 6,000 square feet if there is 20% open
space provided within the subdivision. All lots are proposed to meet the 7,500 square
foot minimum. The applicant does not propose to utilize the authorized reduction of lot
size with provision of minimum 20% open space down to 6,000 square fest. The
minimum heated floor area per dwelling unit is 1,600 square feet. The subdivision
complies with these requirements, although the lot width of the front of each lot needs to
he delineated to ensure compliance.

. Areas of open space. The areas of open space need to be identified for each open

space tract.

10’ landscape strip. This is not a requirement for a detached, single-family subdivision
and may be remaved but it is acceptable to retain.

. Area of overhead electric easement. The area of the overhead electric overhead

easement needs to be identified.
Owen Circle: delineate right of way width and pavement width in selected places.
Providence Road. Delineate existing pavement width and existing right of way.

Base and paving detail. Show required paving specifications from Sec. 315 and 318
ubcC.

. Vertical curb detail. Add vertical curb detail from Sec. 6-319 UDC.

. Deceleration lane. Delineate pavement width and distance per standard for

deceleration lane.

Providence Road improvements: along the entire length of the development's road
frontage improvements are required including standard right of way width, standard
pavement width, curbs, gutters, and sidewalk per Sec. 6-207 UDC, untess request for
waiver is made and approved. For sidewaik, show as extending along entire property
frontage unless waiver form is applied for and granted per Sec. 6-402.

. Street lighting: Add note that street lighting will be required per Sec. 6-324 UDC.

. Road name; addresses. The proposed rcad name should be formally submitted for

approval by Barrow County if has not been approved already. Addresses will be needed
prior to final plat approval but it is acceptable to approve the preliminary plat without
assigned addresses.



Memo, Providence Estates Unit Il Preliminary Plat

/ 15. Statham city limits sign. remove from plat drawing; if this reflects existing signage it
should be moved east to city limits.

treet trees are recommended along the frontage of the proposed new street.



II;l_l:lelril Stephens

From: April Stephens

Sent; Thursday, January 20, 2022 4:01 PM

To: Joe Piper; Gary Venable; Lee Patterson; Scott Penn; Hattie Thrasher; Debi Krause; Sandra Bennett;
April Stephens; Jody Campbell

Subject: Preliminary Plat - February agenda

Attachments: PP-22-01 Preliminary Plat Application Providence Estates ll.pdf; 2021-12-15 Zoning

Confirmation Letter STO5 131.pdf

Good afternoon, Mayor and Council.
We received a preliminary plat for Providence Estates Il. Hard copies of the preliminary plat are in your maitboxes for
your review. We do not have an updated staff report prepared yet, but will have it before the Feb. 3 work session.

We initially gave them a memo/staff report in December requesting changes to the plat, which they have completed
and returned today. We will do another review in the upcoming week. So far, they have adhered to all zoning
requirements and have not asked for any variances or conditional uses.

This tract of land is on Providence Road and zoned UR. Remember in June 2021, council approved to amend the UDC
to no longer allow rezones to UR, however, any existing UR remained. Here is the portion of the Unified Development
Code regarding UR:

Seec. 2-206. UR, Urban Residential District.

(2) Purpose and intent. The Urban Residential zoning district is intended to implement the urban residential future land use
designation on the future land use plan map adopted as a part of the Statham comprehensive plan. A public water supply and
sanitary sewer are typically available to serve this district. This zoning district is primarily intended to establish suitable
arcas primarily for detached, single-family residences on their own lots with resulting densities of less than 6.0 units per acre
(minimum lot size of 7,500 square feet), and less than 7.3 units per acre (minimum Jot size of 6,000 square feet) when 20
percent or more of the subdivided tract is set aside as open space.

(b) Permitted and conditional uses. Permitted and conditional uses shall be as specified in Table 2-1, “Use Regulations for
Zoning Districts.”

(c) Dimensional requirements. Height, setback, lot area, density, intensity, and other requirements for development within
the zoning district shall be as specified in Table 2-2, “Dimensional Requirements for Zoning Districts.”

(d) There shall be no rezoning to the UR, Urban Residential District permitted, and the zoning administrator shall not accept
or process any application for rezoning to the UR, Urban Residential District. fadded via amendment Ord. O-21-07 adopted
6-15-2021]

| wanted to be sure you had this information to look over the plat and ask any questions before the work session
meeting on 2/3.
Thank you!

April Plank Stephens
City of Statham

327 Jefferson St.
Statham, GA 30666
(770) 725-5455 ext. 2014
www.cityofstatham.com



Planning & Zoning Department

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Piper and City Council, City of Statham
1 April Stephens and Jordan McDaniel, City of Statham; Jerry Weitz, Consulting
Planner
FROM: City of Statham Staff
DATE: January 31, 2022
RE: Application for Preliminary Plat Approval for “Providence Estates II,” GDCI GA

7, LP, Applicant and Owner, 35 lots on 18.47 acres fronting Providence Road
(Map/Parcels ST05 131)

Update to Staff Memo Dated December 28, 2021

SUMMARY: A staff memo was provided to applicant and owner, GDCI GA 7, LP on December
28,2021 that supplements preliminary plat application PP-22-01.

City Staff met with the applicant in a pre-application meeting on December 14, 2021 and addressed
several areas of concern of the proposed preliminary plat. On December 28, 2021, Planning
Consultant Jerry Weitz had written a memo to the City and to the applicant’s engineer, Greyden
Engineering, which is included in the application packet.

An updated preliminary plat was returned to the City on January 20, 2022, at which time was
emailed to Mayor and Council along with the application and zoning confirmation letter. Hard
copies of the updated preliminary plat were placed in each members’ mailbox for review.

It is the recommendation of City Staff to approve preliminary plat application PP-22-01 with the
following recommendations:

To approve application PP-22-01 Preliminary Plat with the following conditions:

1. To approve the sidewalk waiver to not install sidewalks along Providence Road in front of
Providence Estates II Development due to a) Providence Place Subdivision does not
contain sidewalks internally or along Providence Road; b) Providence Estates Unit I is
approximately 1800 linear feet from proposed entrance; ¢) There are no traffic controlled
intersections that would allow for pedestrian crossing; d) The existing sidewalk on the
opposite side of Providence Road terminates at April Court, approximately 1100 linear feet

Page 1o0f2



from the proposed entrance; e) Statham Elementary School and Castial Academy are
greater than one-half mile from development; f) There are no parks within one-half mile
from development; g) Approximately 600 linear feet from proposed entrance is the first of
two creek crossings which have no shoulder that would allow for the installation of a
sidewalk. The approval of this waiver is for external use of the subdivision only; it does
not include the internal subdivision.

. With the understanding that absolutely no work may begin in any part of this subdivision
without the proper permits and completed applications.

. It is the due diligence and responsibility of the developer to be in contact with all Utility
companies before any permit of work is issued. Proof will be required by the City that all
Utility companies have been made aware of said subdivision as easements and
infrastructure would be affected by this development.

. The developer/builder is required to maintain all BMPs (Best Management Practices) at all
times throughout the development.

Page 2 0f2



PP-21-04 M G \M@

aet oG 207

8Y: G
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
City of Statham
327 Statham Street Phone: 770-725-5455

Statham, GA 30666

APPLICATION FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT

Applicant Information;
Namao: Sollins 'gf\Q\Y\%{‘\‘M\\ LU

)
Address: 207 Wes \ Y Ix.wm.*_ﬁme'\
Winder, GA 30680

City, State, Zip:
Phone: E-mail: oy Sy \ \ing @, 8 vt L COM,

roperty Owner Information (fdiﬂerentﬁomapplicanv
Name: NHCJ of @ﬁo%,& LL@ .
Address: [020 Cxeclond D(‘l\f(-l (/0]
City, State, Zip: _ 6gq 4 G\ BOG2D.

Phone: 1 '70 ~Z. O\Ll‘ hsshd

The property owner, must sign the following formy; if the applicant is not the property owner, you
must submit evidence of property owner approval to file this application by submitting the property
owner authorization form.,

Tax Map and Parcel Number; S TO L{" 095C 3223- @ q, N

Address (if one has been assigned): /L/ / /4‘

Acteage of Property: L]L 8. l O

Bxisting Zoning District: R K

Proposed Use:

Sf?\ \e_ FM\ ‘Qe S\ h\eﬁ\:‘rlm\ iq\g&\\rt&@ﬂ




Eroperty Ownex Authoyization

1 swear that Y am the owner of the property which i3 the subject matter of this application, as
shown in the records of Barrow County, Georgis.

Name of Owner(s): (\(\ H C_ Q)F &QLOFS {B\(‘ L—L,Q

1 authorize the person named below to act as applicant in the pursuit of this application.

Signature of Property Owner: ?ﬁ%"

Namo of Applicant(syi ¢ Jaceb  PraHher
Address: __[02-0 Gmr[qna! D Ste. 100, Ba,qa‘("}‘! A 3obr-

Property owner personally appeared
before me

oy

who sweats that the information
contained in this authorization is true and
cosrect to the best of his or her knowledge
and belief!

Nmﬂz%&@/’
Dat;/ ) [o[t[&1

{Notary Seal)

», '!Etg5o;t‘? p@)_.‘i&f:)

aggeutt?

O¢
“1y u? n&\“

Eey




Te completo your application, attach/submit the following in addition to this completed form:

Application fee: $500,00 or $30.00 per lot, whichever is greater. Make check payable
>( to the City of Statham.

Plat: Submit 10 copies of the preliminary plat plus one digital copy. Checklist of items
X |is provided below for preliminary plats of subdivisions:

Specifications for all preliminary plats:

Box. A box of not less than three inches square, if at full size, in the upper lefi-hand

corner
County

City

Owner name and contact info

Type of plat

Name of subdivision

Designations for lots (#s)

Developer naroe and contact info

Militia district

Date of plat and revision dates or block for revisions

Sutveyor. Name, address, and telephone number, cortificate of authorization nutber
Surveyor registeation number

Surveyor seal

Page numbers (If the plat hae multiple pages)

Scale (graphic)

Point of beginning and point of reference

Names of adjoining subdivisions and property owners and documents reviewed
Roads. Adjacent streets, xoads, or othet rights-of-way, and the width and the former
widths, if pertinent, of rights-of-way ad]acent to or crossing the property

Water. All water boundaries
Rasements. The width and the former widths, if pertinent, of easerents adjncent to

or within the property

Encroachments and cemeteries. Apparent encroachments and observed evidence of
any cemeterieg ot buvial grounds

North arrow

Metes and bounds bearmgs sud distances and areas of boundary and lofs
Equipment reference

Closure precigion statement

Monuments: must be set at all boundaries. All monuments found set, or replaced
Monument specifications

Street names

Location sketch or vicinity map

Road centerlines, pavement widths and radii

Lot and block identifiers

SN ra I I EAPY AR N S B S PSR A AT A VAN £




VS

Addresses for ench lot (if applicable)

Front building setbacks

A2

Flood hazard aren note

Private covenants, Statement and referencs, if any

Point of beginning and point of reference

Surveyor eertification hox, as follows:

“As required by subsection (d) of 0.C.(LA, Seotion 15-6-67, this plat has beon
prepared by a land sutveyor and approved by all applicable local jurisdictions for
recording as evidenced by approval certificates, signatures, stamps, or statements
hereon, Such approvals or affirmations should be confirmed with the appropriate
governmental bodies by any purchaser or user of this plat as to intended use of
any parcel, Furthermore, the undersigned land surveyor certifies that this plat
complies with the minimum technical standards for property surveys in Georgia
as set forth in the rules and regulations of the Georgia Board of Registration fot
Professiona! Bngineors and Land Surveyors and as set forth in 0.C.GLA. Section
15-6-67."

The land surveyor shall sign on & line immediately benenth the certification,

Owner’s certification:

“The owner of the land shown on this plat and whose name ig subscribed hereto,
certifies that that he/she is the fee simple absolute owner of the land shown on
this plat and that all state, city and county taxes or other assossments now due on
this land have been paid.”

Altapplicable requirements of the City of Statham relative to final plats having been
fulfilled, approval of this is hereby granted by the Zoning Administrator and is

entitled to be recorded.

Zoning Administrator

Date:

?( LT
Sl S Ch,
N O 3 \':o"'““'.. P ’/
whner -~ QQ G\ °°M4;n( =,
Signed, sealed and N O '8';»"\@ =
delivered in the presen IMmie gy O 2}% z
oft e Sl 8“.5 g,vw!:
/. EYA ‘%,O\ A ~3>.:‘:5.§
Notary Hublc™ %, }':‘f: feg & ! c?\ N
.‘] = L1114 .\ y
CORTIFICATE OF PRELIMINARY PLAT ARPROVALSORCI




Health department cextificate. If the subdivision involves an on-site sewage
management system or community water system, the following certification
shall be provided on the plat:
“This final plat has been approved by the Barrow County Health
Department as being consistent with applicable state and local
environmental health requirements.”

Signature, Director, Barrow County Health Department  Date

Note: For a minor subdivision, the Zoning Administrator may waive the requilrement fo
inelude a signed health department cerificate on a final plat; provided, howeyer, that if the
lot(s) included in the final plat of a minor subdivision are to be served by an on-site sewage
mandagetnent system (septic tank), in lieut of said certification the final plat shall contain the
Jollowing note; '

“Hach lot must be reviewed and approved by the Barrow County Buvironmentnl Health
Department for on-site sewage managemont system placement prior to the issuance of a
building permit.”




SULLINS ENGINEERING, L1.C
302 W May St.
Winder, GA 30680

October 13, 2021

Attn: Aprit Plank

City of Statham Planning
327 jefferson Street
Statham, GA 30666

Re: Statham Place: SIDEWALK WAIVER {UDC Code Sec. 6-402)

The intent of this letter is to provide justification for the waiver to not install sidewalks along Dooley Town
Road in front of the Statham Place Development. The following reasons apply: 1)there are not sidewalk along
Dooley Town Road currently and there is limited future development within the City’s boundary that would
extend the sidewalk for future use, 2)there is a lack of right-of-way on Dooley Town Road when considering
the instailation of the deceleration lane, and 3}the rural nature of Dooley Town Road. Please note that the
that this sidewalk waiver is not in reference to the internal subdivision streets of the subdivision,

Sincerely,

( p
it Mo

Matthew Sullins, P.E.



re

SUBDIVISION NAME AND STREET NAME APPROVAL (ST04 095C & ST04 095)

3 messages

G Ivia E i matthew sullins <mattsullins@gmail.com>

matthew sullins <mattsullins@gmail.com> Wed, Oct 13, 2021 at 8:54 AM
To: Joel Carnow <jcarnow@barrowga.org>

SUBDIVISION NAME: STATHAM PLACE
STREET NAMES: DONNIE WAY and OLD SPRING ROAD

Matt Suffing
Sullins Engineering LLC.
(678)687-6219

Joel Carnow <jcarnaw@barrowga.org> Thu, Oct 14, 2021 at 8:32 AM
To: matthew sullins <mattsullins@gmail.com>

Matt,
These names are approved.
Thanks,

Joel Carnow
GIS and Planning Administrator
Barrow County Board of Commissioners

770307 3022

[Quoted text hiddenj

matthew sullins <mattsullins@gmail.com> Thu, Oct 14. 2021 at 8:58 AM
To. Joel Carnow <jcarnow@bharrowga.org>

Thank yoti!
{Quoted text hidden)



Jerry Weitz & Associates, Inc.
Planning & Development Consultants

1225 Rucker Road, Alpharetta, Georgia 30004
Phone: (404) 502-7228 E-Mail: jweitz@belisouth.net

Growth Management
Comprehensive Planning
Zoning & Land Use Regulations
Land Development Applications
Expert Testimony

Zoning Administration

MEMORANDUM
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council, City of Statham
FROM: Jerry Weitz, Consuiting Planner, City of Statham
DATE: October 29, 2021
RE: Application for Preliminary Plat Approval for “Statham Place,” Sullins

Engineering, LLC, Applicant, MHC of Georgia, LLC, property owner, 36 lots on
48.10 acres fronting on the southeast side of Dooley Town Road (part of

Map/Parcels ST04/095C and ST04/095)

A review was completed of the above-referenced application. Several comments were made
and the preliminary plat was revised per staff's comments. Planning Staff recommends

approval of the preliminary plat.

Hard copies of the preliminary plat (copy attached) have been submitted to city hall for

distribution.

Attachment



ary Plat for Statham Place, 10/29/2021

imir

Memo Prel

TR L T e o - I T S TR TR
L s T e v ) B L TR
SN R i Tt ' pirhadh

SHRREDTY R SOM, 1

S e AR S

PR R Rl

b
t
4

“s! .—.JU‘.‘.‘I&
Puine " e

N
st rwian ™

. oa

FOV1d WVHLVILS

¥ RTer vauy [vICL

3w SUNG

=)
AL

~11'BuneauiBug

-3 T
m

[ 2

TR A N VY AR LT
eI ek v Teshi
S AL R VI SSAL

LBV DN YT TV A B ST VAN VLT,

i

iR )R

\
-
H
o —
’
&
fis 90 Bl 0Ll TH
L TI90C YD LAV00Y \
W . 00T TARIQ Y TEYD GIoT $ESUTEI0LL CHI
P S 1T VISECTED 20 5N MFHLYEI 900%1
\ i _ = o =GR AR TOVINGD WICH L




TO:

CC:

FROM:

DATE:

RE:

Planning & Zoning Department

MEMORANDUM

Mayor Piper and City Council, City of Statham

April Stephens and Jordan McDaniel, City of Statham
City of Statham Staff and Jerry Weitz, Consulting Planner
November 10, 2021

Application for Preliminary Plat Approval for “Statham Place,” Sullins
Engineering, LLC, Applicant, MHC of Georgia, L1.C, property owner, 36 lots on
48.10 acres fronting on the southeast side of Dooley Town Road (part of
Map/Parcels ST04/095C and ST04/095)

Planning staff is supplementing its response regarding the preliminary plat based on activity on
the site and the adjacent final plat property that is currently considered in violation of city codes.

It is the recommendation of City Staff and the Consulting Planner to Table the approval of
application PP-21-04 Preliminary Plat for the following reasons:

A. Although submitted as separate applications, owner Jacob Prather of My Home
Communities, LLC is listed on both applications FP-21-02 Jackson Estates Final Plat and
the PP-21-04 Statham Place Preliminary Plat as a point of contact and/or owner.
Additionally, Sullins Engineering developed both plats, and is listed as applicant to
PP-21-04.

City staff and planning and zoning department has encountered several inconsistencies
while working with the applicant beginning in or around October 2020, as listed below:

I

October 10, 2020, Sullins Engineering emailed a concept plan to Consulting
Planner, Jerry Weitz, for a proposed development that consisted of 57 lots along
Dooley Town Road and Highway 211 for approximately 51.57 acres. A markup of
the concept plan with notes was returned to Sullins Engineering by Jerry Weitz, In
that review, planning staff indicated a strong desire to have a through road within
the subdivision, one that connected Dooly Town Road and Highway 211.

November 23, 2020, a letter of water availability was requested by realtor, Mike
Rice, for above referenced proposed development along Dooley Town Road and
Highway 211.

Page 1 of 4



December 7, 2020, a plat was emailed to the City by Sullins Engineering which
consisted of only 10 lots fronting Highway 21 1. The remainder of the property was
excluded because the plat did not involve new or public improvements, a
preliminary plat was not required, and the final plat approval was approved
administratively (since then, the code has been changed that even if there are no
public improvements, {inal plats of 5 or more lots must have city council approval).

December 31, 2020, City staff raised concern about only 10 lots being proposed in
the final plat, rather than a plat for the entire property as originally submitted to the
City in October 2020.

January 25, 2020, the final plat application FP-21-02 was submitted {o the City.
The applicant implied their intention was to only develop 10 lots, and that they did
not foresee developing the entire propetty as originally proposed. Specifically, the
applicant told Weitz that they would not develop the rear portion of the property at
all, and that it would remain open space.

February 12, 2021, the final plat application FP-21-02 for the 10 lots fronting
Highway 211 was approved and signed administratively and recorded with Barrow
County on February 15, 2021. In other words, the city and its consultant took them
at their word and allowed them to proceed with just the 10 lots fronting Highway
211,

April 13, 2021, Sullins Engineering emailed planning consultant, Jerry Weitz, a
concept plan of the “septic subdivision” for Jacob Prather, which Jerry Weitz
immediately forwarded to City staff. Much to the City’s surprise, this concept plan
was for the remainder of the property that was not included in application FP-21-
02 for the 10 lots fronting Highway 211; this newly received concept plan was for
the same property the owner/applicant informed City staff there was no intention
of development. Even if there had been a change of ownership where the back
portion fronting Dooly Town Road was sold off, prior statemenis about it remaining
as open space turned out to be incorrect.

April 14-15, 2021, City staff discussed the situation with Jerry Weitz, and all were
in agreement that the owner/applicant and engineer were not up front and
transparent with their plans, City staff desired a connected development for the
entire property; had intentions from the developer and engineer been forthcoming,
the approval of application FP-21-02 would have been handled much differently,
because a preliminary plat would have been required and staff and consultant
certainly would have recommended that Dooly Town Road and Highway 211 be
connected with a street through the development. In staff’s opinion the applicant
acted to deliberately frustrate the city’s intent in that regard.

April 15,2021, City staff sent an email to Sullins Engineering regarding this “new”
proposed development and included the City’'s outlook about how misleading their

Page 20f4



10.

15.

development team has been thus far. In other our feelings of being deceived were
made known to the applicant’s engineer. There was no response from anyone from
the development team.

June 4, 2021, a revised final plat of FP-21-02 was emailed to City staff that included
a drainage easement and temporary construction easement. City staff was not aware
of any easement, and final plat FP-21-02 that was approved did not list any City
casements. This immediately raised red flags for City staff, at which time staff
asked if these easements indicated the developer was planning construction in the
large open tract of land that was part of the “concept plan” received on April 13.
When City staff addressed this issue with Sullins Engineering, staff was informed
the easement was so the developer could loop the water line in the proposed new
subdivision, as per the City’s previous comments in the email from April 15.

.June 17-23, 2021, revised final plat of FP-21-02 was sent to the City and included

the changes requested by City staff regarding the easement leading from lot 10 of
FP-21-02 to lot 1 of the “new” proposed development. City staff requested civil
plans to ensure the water line would be a looped system before moving forward
with reviewing any additional plans for their “new” development. The revised final
plat of FP-21-02 including the utility easement and temporary construction
easement was approved and became known as final plat FP-2[-05.

. August 9, 2021, upon City and County inspection of the 10 lots fronting Highway

211 (now also known as FP-21-05), it was discovered that a bury/burn pit was
located on lot 8. Pictures were taken, and an email sent to the development team of
My Home Communities.

. October 1, 2021, the City received plans for the “new” development, map and

parcel numbers ST04 095 and ST04 095C for 48.10 acres. At this time, the City
had not received an application or application fees.

. October 6, 2021, the City received Statham Place application and fees, hydrology

report and the civil plans, which were asked for originally in June.

November 4, 2021, application PP-21-04 was placed on the City Council Work

Session Agenda for preliminary plat approval, and scheduled to be voted on at the
November 16, 2021 Regular Meeting.

. November 8, 2021, City staft reached out to Kinder Morgan, a gas utility company,

and discovered that they (Kinder Morgan) had no knowledge of any construction,
development or otherwise of this property. City staff also reached out to other utility
companies including Georgia Power and Colonial Pipeline, and neither of these
companies were notified by the developer or development team. Each of these
utility companies hold easements and infrastructure that would be affected by this
development.

Page 3 of 4



17. November 9, 2021, upon City inspection of the 10 lots fronting Highway 211, it
was discovered that a hole was being dug approximately 20-feet in width, 30-feet
in length, and 15-20 feet in depth behind lot 6, and upon further City and Bureau
Veritas inspection, it was discovered that large amounts of dirt was being removed
from land of the “new™ development (application reference PP-21-04) and a large
hole in the ground approximately 40-45 feet long, 30-feet wide and 8-12 feet deep
was being developed,

City staff issued Stop Work Orders on lots 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 effective immediately.

vi.

Based on this project’s overall history and City stall’s experience with the
developing team and builders, City staff believes the holes that were dug
could be used as bury pits for construction debris, tree debris/inert waste,
which is illegal.

The developer/builder was informed and instructed to clear and grade gne
lot at a time while maintaining all BMPs (Best Management Practices).
BMPs were not followed, to include land disturbance.

Since lots were cleared, graded and dirt was disturbed over multiple lots at
the same time, it is an EPD requirement to obtain a land disturbance permit
for an area in excess of one disturbed acre.

Lot 3 was to be treated with sensitivity since wetlands exist here, however,
the builder was “unaware” of these wetlands, and informed City staff and
Bureau Veritas that he did not “was not aware of the 25’ stream buffer.”
The land behind these 10 lots was not to be disturbed as it is not part of this
current 10-lot development; this has not been approved by the City to be
disturbed, is not permitted by the EPD to be disturbed, and has now created
an issue for when that land is approved to be worked on.

In conclusion, there are code violations alleged on the adjoining property and the property involved
with the preliminary plat. Though the ownership may not technically be the same, the applicant
for the final plat along Highway 211 and the preliminary plat applicant are associated with one
another as indicated earlier in this memo. Staff believes that preliminary plat approval should not
be granted at this time because of such alleged violations. Also, it would be staff’s suggestion that
we consider a design to the preliminary plat and a revision of the final plat that accomplishes the
original intention of the City to attain a through street connecting Highway 211 and Dooley Town

Paged of4



Planning & Zoning Department

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Piper and City Council, City of Statham
CC: April Stephens and Jordan McDaniel, City of Statham; Jerry Weitz, Consulting
Planner
FROM: City of Statham Staff
DATE: January 31, 2022
RE: Application for Preliminary Plat Approval for “Statham Place,” Sullins

Engineering, LLC, Applicant, MHC of Georgia, LLC, property owner, 36 lots on
48.10 acres fronting on the southeast side of Dooley Town Road (part of
Map/Parcels ST04/095C and ST(04/095)

Planning staff is updating its response regarding the request to table Preliminary Plat approval of
“Statham Place.”

SUMMARY: A staff memo was provided to Mayor and Council on November 11, 2021 that
supplemented Planning Staff’s response about preliminary plat application PP-21-04 based on
activity on the site and the adjacent final plat property that was in violation of multiple city codes.
Although submitted as separate applications, owner Jacob Prather of My Home Communities,
LLC is listed on both applications FP-21-02 Jackson Estates Final Plat and the PP-21-04 Statham
Place Preliminary Plat as a point of contact and/or owner. Additionally, Sullins Engineering
developed both plats, and is listed as applicant to PP-21-04.

City Staff, Planning Staff and Bureau Veritas has addressed these city code violations, permitting
fines and BMPs with the builders and applicant/owner My Home Communities which were
referenced in the November 11, 2021 memo. All violations have been addressed; BMPs in place
and all fines have been paid in full. It is the recommendation of City Staff to allow application PP-
21-04 Preliminary Plat to be placed on the February 3, 2022 work session agenda and February
15, 2022 regular meeting agenda for council vote with the following recommendations:

To approve application PP-21-04 Preliminary Plat with the following conditions:

1. To approve the sidewalk waiver to not install sidewalks along Dooley Town Road in front
of Statham Place Development due to a) there are no existing sidewalks along Dooley
Town Road; b) the rural nature of Dooley Town Road; ¢) limited future development that

Page 10of 2



would extend the sidewalk for future use. The approval of this waiver is for external use of
the subdivision only; it does not include the internal subdivision.

. With the understanding that absolutely no work may begin in any part of this subdivision
without the proper permits and completed applications. Based on this project’s overall
history and City staff’s experience with the developing team and builders, the City and
their affiliates with closely monitor the progress of development.

. It is the due diligence and responsibility of the developer to be in contact with all Utility
companies before any permit of work is issued. Proof will be required by the City that all
Utility companies have been made aware of said subdivision as easements and
infrastructure would be affected by this development.

. The developer/builder is required to maintain all BMPs (Best Management Practices) at all
times throughout the development.

Page 2 of 2



STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF BARROW

AGREEMENT FOR RESERVED SEWER CAPACITY

THIS AGREEMENT FOR RESERVED SEWER SERVICE, made as of the
day of , 20 22 , by and between THE CITY OF STATHAM,
GEORGIA, a municipal corporation chartered by the General Assembly of the State of Georgia,
(herein called "Statham™) and _ GDCI GA 7, LP , a Georgia [insert corporate structure]
(herein called "Developer™), as well as its successors and assigns.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Developer owns or will own certain property (herein called the "Developer
Property") which is shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and which is located so as to be
serviceable by sewer capacity to be supplied by Statham; and

WHEREAS, Statham desires to sell and reserve to Developer, and Developer desires to
purchase and reserve from Statham approximately 8,750 gallons per day of
sewage treatment capacity; and

WHEREAS, Statham has authority to enter into this Agreement under the provisions of
Paragraph III of Section IT of Article IX of the Constitution of Georgia.

NOW, THEREFORE, for mutual consideration and the covenants hereinafter set forth,
Statham and Developer, intending to be legally bound hereby agree as follows:

1. Reservation of Capacity, In consideration of this Agreement, Statham shall purchase from

Barrow County and reserve to Developer and its successors and assigns,

8,750 gallons per day of sewage treatment capacity (herein called the

"Developer Reserved Capacity") for the purpose of providing sewage (reatment to the
Developer and/or subsequent owners and users of the Developer Property.

2. Consideration. Developer shall pay Statham an advance payment (herein called the
"Advance Payment™) in the amount of _ $157,500 within sixty (60)
days of this agreement. Developer acknowledges that the Advance Payment shall be used
exclusively by Statham to purchase sewage treatment capacity from the Barrow County
Water and Sewer Authority (hereinafter called “Barrow™) for use at the Developer
Property. The Advance Payment shall be credited against all future connection fees,
availability charges, surcharge fees and other tap-on fees and charges (by whatever name
called and herein called "Tap-on Fees"), computed at Statham's then prevailing rate at the
time building permits are issued for any portion of the Developer Property ("prevailing
rate" shall be defined as the rate then established by Statham as payable by any then
existing or future sewer customer dependent upon the lift Station for utilization of sewer
capacity). In addition {o the Advance Payment, Developer shall pay to Statham a non-

Page 1 of 5



refundable, administrative fee equal to five percent (5%) of the Advance Payment amount
to cover Statham’s administrative overhead costs associated with purchasing, managing,
and monitoring the future capacity and its usage.

Zoning Contingency. The Developer acknowledges that tender of the Advance Payment
shall not entitle the Developer to zoning approval nor shall such payment be considered
or factored into any zoning decision by the governing authority of Statham. The Advance
Payment shall be calculated based upon the number of lots shown on the proposed plat
and site plan submitted in connection with any zoning application. If the number of lots
shown on an approved final plat is greater than those shown on the site plan submitted in
connection with the request for zoning, as a condition of plat approval, Developer agrees
to purchase in advance such additional sewage freatment capacity as is necessary at the
then prevailing rate. If the number of lots shown on an approved final plat is less than
those shown on the site plan submitted in connection with the request for zoning, the
Developer shall be entitled to either 1) a refund of any portion of the Advance Payment
not required or 2) a credit against future Tap-On Fees due at the time building permits are
issued for Developer’s Property.

Required Infrastructure. Any public sanitary sewer systems installed, or caused to be
installed by Developer on Developer's Property shall be constructed in accordance with
all applicable state and local laws, ordinances, regulations and rules and shall be subject
to the review and approval of the plans and specifications by Statham and subject to
inspection and approval by Statham of the installation of said systems. Upon completion
by Developer and approval by Statham of said sanitary sewer systems and easements
according to Statham's requirements, such sewer systems and casements shall, within six
(6) months after approval, be submitted to Statham for dedication and, upon acceptance
by Statham (which shall not be unreasonably withheld), shall become part of Statham's
sewer system.

Future Connections. If any adjoining upstream property owner desires fo connect to any
sanitary sewer approved by Statham prior to the time Developer requires such connection,
Developer will grant to Statham an easement running fo the designated sewer line
connection point location, or from any sewer connection systems already located within the
Developer Property, to the boundary of the Developer Property line, at a location approved
by Developer and at no cost to either Statham County or the adjoining property owner,
provided that the adjoining land owner (1) agrees in writing to repair and restore Developer's
property to its property to its prior condition, (ii) carries builder's risk insurance with a
company and in an amount reasonably satisfactory to Developer which names Developer as
an additional insured and provides Developer with a copy of the same prior to
commencement of construction, and (i) agrees in writing, to indemnify and hold Developer
harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, damage or expense that Developer may
suffer or incur (including, without limitation, attorney's fees and court costs) arising out of
or related to the easement. The cost of constructing the connecting sewer system within the
easement area of the Developer's property shall be paid solely by the requesting adjoining
property owner with no financial obligation or participation by Developer. Such sewer line

Page 2 of 5



connection systems shall be sized at the time of the installation and built according to
Statham regulations.

Developer Easements. Developer will reserve on all final plats an easement along all
natural drainage areas to the boundaries of the development property for the purpose of
running future sewer lines. Permanent easements shall be 20 feet wide and adequate to
install said lines, with adjacent temporary construction casements of 10 feet in width on
each side of the permanent easements. After future sewer lines are installed, any
temporary construction easements shall be terminated.

Waiver of Liability. Developer acknowledges and agrees that Statham shall have no
hability, except for paragraph 2 herein, to Developer for the failure of any third party to do
or perform any act, including, without limitation, any failure by third party to pay the cost
of installing all or any part of the sewage collection system upon which Developer may be
dependent in order to connect Developer's sewage collection system to the sewerage system.
Statham makes no representations or representations regarding the ability to provide sewer
service to Developer Property, and Developer hereby waives any and all claims against
Statham based upon Statham’s ability or inability to provide sewer service to Developer
Property. Developer shall be responsible for acquiring any and all easements necessary to
serve the subject Developer Property,

Repurchase and Refund Rights. Statham and Developer understand and agree that there
is presently a limited amount of sewer capacity available to Statham through Barrow
County.

a. In the event Statham is unable to acquire the necessary sewer capacity from
Barrow County, Statham shall refund to Developer the Advance Payment,
which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to Developer on account
of Statham’s inability to reserve sufficient capacity from Barrow County.

b. Statham and Developer understand and agree that so long as the present sewer
- capacity shortfall exists, Developer will furnish status reports to Statham at the
end of twenty-four (24) months from the date of payment as required under
paragraph 4 hereinabove and at twelve (12) month intervals thereafter which
show the status of utilization of the Developer Reserved Capacity. These
reports shall be in sufficient detail to show the status of contracts, closings,
construction and occupancy dates. At any time within sixty (60) days (the
"Option Period") of receiving a required status report, or upon failure of
Developer to timely submit a required status report or if at any time Barrow
demands the repurchase of Reserved Capacity from Statham, Statham shall
have the Option to repurchase any portion of the Developer Reserved Capacity
which exceeds, in Statham's judgment, the amount of capacity necessary to
adequately service the Developer Property (the portion thus subject to said
Option shall be hereinafter referred to as the "Excess Capacity™). The Option
price payable by Statham upon exercise of the Option shall equal to the price
paid by Developer for capacity pursuant to this Agreement. Exercise of said

Page 3 of 5



10.

11.

Option shall be by written notice to Developer deposited in the .S, Mail
(certified mail return receipt requested) with adequate postage thereon within
the Option Period, and addressed to Developer at the address given hereinbelow
or at any substitute address provided to Statham by Developer in writing
subsequent to this Agreement. Said notice shall state Statham's election to
exercise its Option, together with the total capacity to be repurchased and the
total repurchase price payable. Said notice shall be deemed received on the third
day following the date it is posted, provided it is mailed pursuant to the above
requirements. In the event Developer has any objection to Statham's exercise of
the Option, Developer shall submit to Statham in writing, within thirty (30)
days of receipt of Statham's notice of exercise (the "Objection Period"), its
detailed objection, together with any supplemental report Developer desires to
submit. Any objection not received within the Objection Period shall be deemed
waived. Upon receipt of an objection, Statham shall tender the repurchase price,
as adjusted if applicable pursuant to this process, whereupon Developer's
capacity shall be administratively adjusted accordingly. This Agreement may
be terminated by Developer at any time. Within ten (10) days after notification
of termination, Statham shall refund all payments by Developer for any unused
capacity. Developer waives any and all claims against Statham arising from or
relating to any repurchase of sewer capacity by Statham or Barrow County
pursuant to this paragraph.

Developer’s Efforts. In order to ensure that the Developer is utilizing the reserved
capacity in a timely manner, Developer must establish evidence of the following;:

a. A continuous marketing effort must be undertaken.

b. A Grading/Building Permit should be acquired within 2 years from the date of
execution of this document by the Statham County Board of Commissioners.

c. Upon approval of the Permit, construction should begin within 60 days from the date
of approval,

Severability. If any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Agreement shall
be declared or judged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall in no manner
affect the other phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Agreement,
which shall remain in full force and effect as it the phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph of
section of the Agreement so declared or adjudicated invalid or unconstitutional was not
originally a part hereof.

Duty to Mitigate Capacity Usage. In the event that re-use water becomes available the
Developer agrees to use re-use water on any common areas needing irrigation. The
Developer also agrees to allow Statham to irrigate on any unused property within the
Development provided that it does not interfere with the Development. The developer
will install casing under all driveways to accommodate possible installation of reuse lines.

Page 4 of 5



All developments will reserve an easement 5 feet in width adjacent to the right-of-way for
the purpose of installing re-use water lines.

12.  Assignment and transferability. The reserved capacity acquired by Statham shall inure to
and run with the Developer Property, and upon any conveyance of said property, the
Developer’s rights under this Agreement shall likewise be conveyed to the purchaser of
the Developer Property. Purchaser shall perform in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement in its entirety and be bound by the conditions and restrictions set forth herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOEF, the fully authorized officials of Statham and the fully
authorized officers of Developer have respectively caused this Agreement to be entered into on
behalf of Statham and Developer and the seals of Statham and Developer to be affixed hereto on
the date and year first above written.

CITY OF STATHAM, GEORGIA

By:
Joe Piper, Mayor SEAL

Attest:

April Stephens, City Accountant

Approved as to form:

Jody Campbell, City Attorney

DEVELOPER NAME

By:
Title:

Page 5 of 5



McDaniel Utilities, Inc.
Chris McDaniel

P.O. Box 1602

Winder, Georgia 30680
404-569-0508

Proposed Bid for RFP# 21-005
City of Statham Gravity Sewer Line Replacement
Behind Casto's from 2nd Street to 1st Street

-Tree Removal $ 33,000.00
-Tie into 1st manhole on 2nd Street $ 6,000.00
-Remove existing clay pipe, replace with
new 8" SDR 26 PVC, approximately 500

~ ft. @ $ 180.00 In.fi. $ 90,000.00
-1 new manhole about midway point
(approximately 6.5' tall) $ 3,500.00
-Replace existing manhole at 1st Street
(approximately 8' tall) $ 6,000.00

-6 new service tie-ins @ $ 2,000.00 ea. $ 12,000.00
-Approximately 180 tons #57 bedding

stone @ $ 44.00 ton $ 7,920.00
-Repave 15' x 20' in sireet $ 14,000.00
-Sow grass with contractors blend seed,

mulch with hay or straw $ 2,800.00

Total $ 175,220.00



ANVEESON

Grading & Pipeline; LLC | ﬁfﬂpﬂgal

To: City of Statham Date: January 27, 2022
Address: 327 Jefferson St.

City / State: Statham, GA 30666

Attn:  Jordan McDaniel Job: Statham Gravity Sewer Line Replacement
Phone: 770-725-5455 Location: Statham, GA 30666
Email.  jmcdaniel@cityofstatham.com

Engineer: N/A Addenda:
Plan Date: N/A Proposal good for 30 days
ndard Exclusi nl wise noted):
Asbestos and/or other hazardous materials testing or abatement is excluded.
Set up or maintenance of truck wash facility. Permits, Fees, Meters,
Re-location, removal or replacement of existing utilities. NPDES permitting or monitoring.
Excavation below sub-grade in cut areas or below stated topsoil depth in fill areas. Compaction Testing
Removal/disposal of rock, unsuitable soils, hazardous materials. Rock Boring. Maintenance or removal of erosion control items.
De-watering, well points, manipulation of soils to attain proper molsture content. Undercutting or de-mucking.
Hauling off or hauling in dirt to achieve site balance. Catch basin tops & throats
Hauling off or hauling in topsoil, except as noted, Landscaping, hardscaping or fencing.

Water & sanitary sewer lines are priced to 5-ft outside buildings. Tie-in by others.
Asphalt patching or asphalt overlay of existing streets,

Description Quantity  Unit
CLEARING & DEMO

CLEAR, GRUB & HAUL OFF 1 LS
TREE SURGEON WORK 1 LS
REMOVE SEWER PIPE 500 LF
REMOVE SEWER MANHOLES 1 EA

EROSION CONTROL

CONSTRUCTION EXIT W/ FABRIC incl REMOVAL 1 EA
SILT FENCE - TYPE S & REMOVAL 520 LF
GRASSING 1 LS
SANITARY SEWER
8" PVC SDR26 (0™-10') 500 LF
6" PVC SDR26 (0-10') 60 LF
STONE BEDDING . 169 TN
4' DIAMETER MANHOLE 14 VF
STREET RING AND COVER 1 EA
CAST IN, BOLT DOWN RING & COVER 1 EA
ADJUST RINGS & COVERS TO PAVING 1 EA
8" X 6" PVC SDR26 SERVICE ASSEMBLY 4 EA
STREET CUT AND CONCRETE PATCH 12 sY
ASPHALT PATCH 12 8Y
SEWER TESTING 600 LF
PROPOSAL TOTAL: $ 189,000.00

128 E. Highland Ave. PO Box 602
Monroe, GA 30655
Statham Sewer Replacement Phone 770-385-1018 Fax 770-385-3326 Page 1 of 2



Jerry Weitz & Associates, Inc.
Planning & Development Consultants

1225 Rucker Road, Alpharetta, Georgia 30004
Phone: (404) 502-7228 &-Mail: jweilz@@bellsouth.net

Growth Management
Comprehensive Planning
Zoning & Land Use Regutations
Land Development Applications
Expert Testimony

Zoning Administration

MEMORANDUM
TO: Honorable Mayor Joe Piper, City of Statham
C: Sandra Bennett, April Plank, Jody Campbell
FROM: Jerry Weitz, Consulting City Planner
DATE: December 28, 2020
RE: Development impact fee program for Statham: framework and steps

This memo outlines a strategy for your consideration to rapidly develop and implement an
impact fee program. This memo also serves as a primer for summarizing components of the

impact fee program that can be shared with city council members.

WHAT IS AN IMPACT FEE?

it is a payment of money imposed upon development as a condition of development approval to
pay for a proportionate share of the cost of system improvements needed to serve new growth

and development. It is paid at the time of a building permit.
WHY ADOPT AN IMPACT FEE PROGRAM?

Without an impact fee program:

M The costs of providing facilities serving new development are paid for mostly if not
exclusively through property taxes (city capital improvement budget) and special sales

taxes {or just special local optich sales taxes)

B All property owners in the city pay for the necessary improvements to serve new
development; that is an arrangement that can be viewed as unfair and inequitable to
residents, who may not want to subsidize the costs of facilities for new development

M Facilities may not otherwise be funded at the most appropriate level of service

With impact fees;

B The city puts together a plan that identifies needs and provides for new facilities

M A portion of the costs of providing facilities for new development are attributed to and

paid for by new development as it occurs



Statham Development Impact Fee Program Prospectus

OVERVIEW OF PROGRAM COMPONENTS
Capital improvements element {CIE) of the comprehensive plan

To support a development impact fee program, the city's comprehensive plan must meet state
administrative rules for Capital Improvements Elements (CIEs).! This work is beginning
immediately. The CIE will address the services for which the city wants to charge impact fees.

Development Impact Fee Ordinance(s)

Impact fee ordinances must comply with applicable state law. Impact fee ordinances are
relatively standardized in terms of contents, and templates are available and in-hand. The
preparation of an impact fee ordinance itself is not time consuming, although the city will have
active participation by the city attorney in the effort.

State law requires establishment of an impact fee advisory committee, and the composition of
the committee is also prescribed in state law:

The comprehensive plan amendment (Capital Improvement Element) must be adopted prior to
ordinance adoption, but both could take place at the same meeting. Two public hearings are
required by statute to be held (minimum two weeks apart) on the impact fee ordinance prior to
adoption.

FACILITY PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Facilities Eligible

Impact fees can be charged by local governments for scme facilities and services, but not
others. School impact fees are not authorized under Georgia law. Water and sewer impact fees
can be prepared and adopted, but Statham already has tap/connection fees and such an
approach is permissible and serves some of the same purposes as an impact fee program. A
road impact fee can be charged, although the preparation of an impact fee program for roads is
more complicated than for other services. Drainage is also an eligible expense, although in my
opinion the greater need has to do with maintenance of existing stormwater facilities, and a
stormwater “utility” is a better approach because stormwater utility fees can be used for
maintenance of existing facilities.

Public safety (policeflaw enforcement including courts, fire, and emergency medical services are
eligible facilities for impact fee funding. Fire and EMS are provided by the county, so we should
seek their formal agreement to charge impact fees for those services in Statham. The city has a
police force, and this makes police facilities an obvious choice for impact fees. Parks and
recreation are eligible services, and they are recommended for impact fees. With regard to
libraries, the cily does not directly provide that service (it is part of the regional library system)
but future population growth will strain existing library facilities serving Statham. Therefore, a
library impact fee may also be recommended.

! Rules of Georgfa Department of Community Affairs, Chapter 110-12-2, Development Impact Fee Compliance
Requirements



Statham Development Impact Fee Program Prospectus

Facility Planning Details

Growth projections (population and employment) are needed to plan for future facilities. There
will be some significant effort required to develop reliable pepulation and employment
projections. After deciding which facilities and services for which impact fees will be collected, a
level of service standard must be established. Accurate inventories of existing facilities must be
completed 1o assess existing levels of service and to prepare level of service standards. A
service area for each facility/service must be established. Usually, service areas are established
for the entire local government jurisdiction; however, there may be reason to consider dividing
the city into service areas for some facilities/services.

Once facilities/services have service levels established, a schedule of improvements is
prepared; those are the only projects for which impact fees can be spent. Each project requires
an eslimated cost. Per O.C.G.A. 36-71-4(q), development impact fees must be based on actual
system improvement cosls or reasonable estimates of such costs,

HOW MUCH WOULD THE IMPACT FEES BE?

One cannot say up front. The fee should be based on fuli cost-recovery considerations.
However, in practice the impact fees are usually discounted (i.e., set lower than real costs). The
city can also charge up to 3% of the impact fee to offset administrative costs of administering
the impact fee program.

Shown below is research | conducted two years ago showing what other local governments in
Georgia have been charging for impact fees (by type):

Comparison of Development Impact Fee
by Type for a Single-family Dwelling Unit
Representative Local Governments in Georgia
(excludes utility fees)

Georgia Public Parks Roads Library All Impact
Local Govt. Safety Fees
Milton $638.43 $6,215.10 $678.36 - $7,757.85
Sandy Springs $444.80 $4,543.67 $1,666.69 -= $6,854.82
Alpharetta $6,494.68
Forsyth County $510.00 $1,178.00 $1,968.00 $148.00 $3,641.00
Roswell (2,500 sq. $916.00 $559.00 $1,690.00 - $3,517.00

ft. home)

Dawson County $941.29 $813.88 $999.55 $225.99 $2,980.71
Powder Springs $669.36 $1,449.11 - - $2,118.47
Fayetteville $693.95 $665.90 $216.58 - $1,576.43
Cherokee County $799.21 $283.74 $589.70 $281.08 $1,953.71
Woodstock -- $1,465.75 - - $1,465.75
Jefferson - $1,203.75 - - $1,293.75

In my view, the total impact fee charged by Statham {which depends on the services included)
should be in the range of $1,500 to $4,500 per dwelling unit, recognizing that significant water
and sewer connection fees are already paid in Statham. Again, the amount would be based on
detailed cost of facility/service considerations.



Statham Development Impact Fee Program Prospectus

As another example, | have provided below the fees that are charged in Hoschton (a program |
helped develop in 2020) (residential only shown; excludes nonresidential):

Fee Admin. Fee (3%} | Total per dwelling

{dwelling unit only) unit w/ admin fee

Police $23.75 $815.71

Fire/rescue $28.21 $968.81

Park/open space land $32.37 $1,111.58

Total $84.33 $2,896.10
WHO PAYS?

Park and recreation services and libraries serve residential development almost exclusively;
therefore, they are charged to residential development only. Public safety facilities serve
nonresidential as well as residential development and are therefore charged to all
developments.

ACCOUNTING AND IMPLEMENTATION CONSIDERATIONS

Individual impact fee trust funds would be established for each facility (in the case of public
safety, separate funds would be established for law enforcement and fire protection/EMS.
Monies coliected for each type must remain in the appropriate trust fund and used for lawful
purposes (capital improvements plus related expenditures like planning, architecture,
engineering, land acquisition, etc.).

Local governments that charge impact fees are required to annually update the comprehensive
plan including capital improvements element and community work program. Annual reports of
impact fees collected, encumbered, and expended must be sent {o the Georgia Department of
Community Affairs at the time the annuat plan update is submitted for required regional and
state review.

ESTIMATED COSTS OF PURSUING THE PROGRAM

I have indicated previously that my role in the program will require an estimated $10,000 to
$15,000, depending on which facilities and services are included. This amount implies some
assistance from city staff in collecting data about city facilities. The planning amount of this fee
is reimbursable with impact fees by putting it in the capital improvements element. Some
additional work is implied by the city attorney to review the draft ordinance, draft or review one
or more intergovernmental agreements, and to participate in various meetings.

IMPLEMENTATION MILESTONES (aggressive — best case)

1. Advertise and hold initial public hearing on the capital improvements element of the
comprehensive plan (January 2021). (suggested notice has been provided already)

2. City Council appoints members of the development impact fee advisory commitiee
(February 2021). (suggested notice to Council in January)



Statham Development Impact Fee Program Prospectus

3. Initiate formal discussions with non-city service providers (county fire and rescue
department / emergency medical services and the regional library system (if desired),
regarding intergovernmental agreements and desired service levels as well as
determining capital facility needs. Task the city attorney with drafting any necessary
intergovernmental agreements (Weitz can assist). (January to March 2021).

4. Hold meeting of the impact fee advisory committee (March or April 2021).

5. Complete the draft capital improvements element (this can be reviewed by the
committee, but the commitiee is only required to consider the ordinance) (March 2021).
Schedule a second public hearing (April 2021} and transmit the CIE for regional and
siate review.

6. Advertise and conduct two public hearings on the ordinance (April — May 2021). The
two hearings must be at least 14 days apart.

7. Adopt the capital improvements element {May 2021) and impact fee ordinance (same
meeting is a possibility).

WHY THE URGENCY?

Residential developers and builders have been in contact with city officials about proceeding
with development plans. There are literally hundreds of residential dwelling units on the horizon,
perhaps even 1,000 potential dwelling permits to be issued in the next several months, if
projects discussed come to fruition. Once word goes out publicly (i.e., in January 2021) that
Statham is pursuing impact fees, builders and developers will aggressively expedite their
programs if possible to try and avoid paying the fee. The city should expect to lose potential
impact fee review on dozens if not hundreds of units. However, if the program is put in place
expeditiously (i.e., by June 2021), the city will be able to get impact fee revenues on the vast
majority of new dwelling units constructed.



